
1 
 

PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson @co.polk.wi.us 

        MINUTES 
                                      PUBLIC SAFETY AND HIGHWAY COMMITTEE 

                                                        County Board Room, Balsam Lake, WI 54810       
2:00 P.M. Tuesday, November 6, 2018 

 
Meeting called to order by Chairman Luke at 2:00 p.m. 
Committee Members Present: 
Attendee Name Title Status 
Jay Luke Chair Present 
John Bonneprise Vice Chair Present 
Doug Route Supervisor Present 
Joe Demulling Supervisor Present 
Larry Jepsen Supervisor Present 
   
Also present Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk; Jeff Fuge, Interim County Administrator; Emil Norby, 
Highway Commissioner; Pete Johnson, Polk County Sheriff; and Chad Roberts, Chief Deputy/Sheriff’s 
Department. Supervisor Kim O’Connell joined meeting at 2:25 p.m. 
                                                                  
Approval of Agenda-Chair Luke called for a motion to approve the agenda. Motion (Demulling/Route) 
to approve the agenda.  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Approval of Minutes- Chair Luke called for a motion to approve the minutes of the October 9, 2018 
meeting. Motion (Jepsen/Demulling) to approve the minutes. Motion to approve the October 9, 2018 
minutes as published carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Public Comment  
Time was given for public comment. No public comment was received by committee. 

Receipt of Information from Supervisors Not Seated as Committee Members:  No information was 
received by the committee. 

Committee received information and a Force to Force Training demonstration from Sheriff’s Department 
Personnel, Chad Roberts and Pete Johnson.  

Committee received a report on the annual jail inspection from Chad Roberts. The jail received a good 
report overall with 3 minor procedural areas slated for improvement.  

Committee received a status report and updates from Emil Norby, Highway Commissioner regarding the 
Highway Facility project and demolition of the old facility. Some buildings at the old facility have been 
completely removed/demolished and the roof of the old building is nearly gone on the former highway 

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


2 
 

site. No soil issues were found on the old site where fuel tanks were removed. Door relays are under 
completion on the new facility. Final paving for the new facility at Loon & Pheasant will be completed in 
the spring of 2019 due to weather issues. 

Committee received an update regarding the Wisconsin County Highway Association from Supervisor 
Jepsen. Highway Association will be advocating for increased legislation with the goal of improving the 
safety of highway workers/flaggers and preventing fatalities of road workers. 

Committee received 2019 Budget information regarding the Highway Department Budget and 
recommendations from Interim Administrator Fuge regarding a technical amendment.  

Motion (Bonneprise/Jepsen) to amend the highway budget per technical amendment #11 increasing 
state aids received by $46,634.00 and increasing construction materials (asphalt) by $46,634.00 in 2019. 

Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion to amend highway budget increasing state 
aids received by $46,634.00 and Increasing construction materials (asphalt) by $46,634.00 in 2019 
carried by unanimous voice vote.  

Committee received information regarding the Jail Controller Project from Interim Administrator Fuge 
and Chief Deputy Chad Roberts. 

Recommendation on Resolution No. 86-18: Resolution to Re-Establish the Criminal Justice Collaborating 
Council was discussed. Chair Luke called upon Interim Administrator Fuge to address the committee 
regarding the resolution. Motion (Jepsen/Bonneprise) to approve Resolution No. 86-18 and recommend 
for passage to the County Board.  

Chair Luke called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion to approve Resolution No. 86-18 and 
recommend for passage to the County Board carried by unanimous voice vote.  

Committee received information from Interim Administrator Fuge regarding the status of the pending 
Supreme Court case in Marathon County and any affect it may have in regards to proposed Ordinance 
No. 48-18: Polk County Uniform Rural Addressing and Road Numbering Ordinance. 

Committee reviewed proposed Ordinance No. 48-18: Polk County Uniform Rural Addressing and Road 
Numbering Ordinance.  

Committee requested options for wording Ordinance No. 48-18 to allow for possibility of dual naming of 
addresses, or possibility of intergovernmental agreements with towns who would then resolve 
addressing issues within the town.  

Supervisor Jepsen requested clarity on the addressing moratorium as to whether it is helpful or a 
hindrance overall. Committee will readdress moratorium at December meeting.  Chairman Luke called 
upon Supervisor O’Connell who provided clarification regarding the moratorium on addressing. 

Interim Administrator Fuge asked committee to review the language of proposed Ordinance No. 48-18 
between now and the December committee meeting.   



3 
 

Committee received information regarding a DOT issued letter to Polk County regarding the Stower Trail 
Master Plan and possible paybacks owed if trail is motorized.  

Revise Committee Workplan 

Monthly department program reviews  

Develop 2019 work plan – December meeting 

Matters for Upcoming Meetings 

Next meeting: December 4, 2018 at County Board Room 

December agenda items: Monthly department program review, Review proposed Ordinance No. 48-18 

Chair Luke called for a motion to adjourn.  Motion (Bonneprise/Luke) to adjourn.  Motion carried by 
unanimous voice vote.  Chair Luke declared meeting adjourned at 3:19 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 

 

 





PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
                                       W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                                                       Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson@co.polk.wi.us 

AGENDA AND NOTICE OF MEETING 
PUBLIC SAFETY & HIGHWAY COMMITTEE 

Government Center, 100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 
County Board Room  

Tuesday, November 6, 2018 at 2:00 p.m. 
A quorum of the County Board may be present 

 
Materials: October 9, 2018 Minutes; Proposed Polk Uniform Rural Addressing and Road 
Numbering Ordinance, Proposed Resolution, Workplan   
 
Order of Business  
1. Call to Order-Chairman Luke 
2. Approval of Agenda 
3. Approval of Minutes for October 9, 2018 
4. Public Comment (3 minutes) 
5. Receipt of Information from Supervisors Not Seated as Committee Members 
6. Force to Force Training Demonstration – Sheriff’s Department Personnel 
7. Report on Annual Jail Inspection 
8. Update on Highway Facility and Demolition of Old Highway Facility 
9. Wisconsin County Highway Association Update 
10. Action/Discussion Items 

a. Develop Recommendations Concerning the Proposed 2019 Budget, specific to 
programs, services and functions assigned to committee:  Highway Department, 
Sheriff Department, District Attorney, Clerk of Circuit Courts and Circuit Court. 

i. Highway State Aid 
ii. Jail Controller Project 

b. Recommendation regarding Resolution No. 86-18: Resolution to Re-Establish the 
Criminal Justice Collaborating Council 

c. Develop Revisions to Proposed Ordinance No. 48-18: Polk County Uniform Rural 
Addressing and Road Numbering Ordinance 

11. Review and Revise 2018 Committee Work Plan 
12. Develop 2019 Committee Work Plan 
13. Identify Subject Matters for December Meeting 
14. Adjourn 

___________________________________________________________________ 
Items on the agenda not necessarily presented in the order listed. This meeting is open to the public 
according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities wishing to attend and/or participate 
are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715-485-9226) at least 24 hours in advance of the scheduled 
meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be made. Requests are confidential.  

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


1 
 

PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson @co.polk.wi.us 

        MINUTES 
                                      PUBLIC SAFETY AND HIGHWAY COMMITTEE 

                                                        Polk County Highway Department Conference Room 
                     900 Pheasant Lane, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 
                  2:00 P.M. Tuesday, October 9, 2018 
 

Meeting called to order by Chairman Luke at 2:00 p.m. 
Committee Members Present: 
Attendee Name Title Status 
Jay Luke Chair Present 
John Bonneprise Vice Chair Present 
Doug Route Supervisor Present 
Joe Demulling Supervisor Present 
Larry Jepsen Supervisor Present 
   
Also present Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk; Jeff Fuge, Interim County Administrator; Emil Norby, 
Highway Commissioner; Pete Johnson, Polk County Sheriff; Andrea Jerrick, Employee Relations 
Director/Deputy Administrator; Chad Roberts, Chief Deputy; Rob Rorvick, Deputy; Maggie Wickre, 
Finance Director; Jason Kjeseth, Zoning Administrator; members of the public and member of the press. 
                                                                  
Approval of Agenda-Chair Luke called for a motion to approve the agenda. Motion (Bonneprise/Jepsen) 
to approve the agenda.  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Approval of Minutes- Chair Luke called for a motion to approve the minutes of the September 4, 2018 
meeting. Motion (Demulling/Route) to approve the minutes. Motion to approve the September 4, 2018 
minutes as published carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Public Comment  
Time was given for public comment. No public comment was received by committee. 

Receipt of Information from Supervisors Not Seated as Committee Members:  No information received 
by the committee. 

Committee received information regarding awards bestowed by the Sheriff’s Department and the 
selection process of award recipients from Sheriff Johnson. The Lifesaving Award of Honor was 
presented by Sheriff Pete Johnson to Deputy Rorvick for lifesaving measures he provided to a citizen 
who was found nonresponsive in November 2017. The citizen expressed his gratitude to Deputy Rorvick. 

Committee received a PowerPoint presentation and update regarding the Rural Bridge Program and 
interaction with the State of Wisconsin from Highway Commissioner Norby.  

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


2 
 

Committee received a status report and updates from Emil Norby, Highway Commissioner regarding the 
Highway Facility project and demolition of the old facility.  Finishing touches and the final punch list 
items of the highway facility project are being completed, along with resolution of minor Wi-Fi issues 
and completion of final details of Information Technology items. Trucks are filling the salt shed. 
Demolition of the old highway building will be complete by November 16.  

Committee received 2019 Budget packets for the functional areas under the Public Safety & Highway 
Committee including: Clerk of Court, District Attorney, Law Enforcement, and Highway Department.  
Committee received 2019 Budget information presentation and recommendations from Interim 
Administrator Fuge.  

Motion (Jepsen/Demulling) for the Public Safety & Highway Committee to recommend that the County 
Board adopt those budgets of the functions and programs assigned to said committee as contained and 
presented in the Administrator’s recommendation for the 2019 Operating and Capital Budget. Chair 
Luke called for a voice vote on said motion.  Motion to recommend that the County Board adopt those 
budgets of the functions and programs assigned to said committee as contained and presented in the 
Administrator’s recommendation for the 2019 Operating and Capital Budget carried by unanimous voice 
vote.  

Recommendation on Resolution No. 76-18: Resolution to Rescind Moratorium on the Administration of 
County Rural Road/Address Numbering System and to Call for the Vote on Proposed Ordinance No. 48-
18: Polk County Uniform Rural Addressing and Road Numbering Ordinance was discussed. Chair Luke 
called upon Zoning Administrator Kjeseth to address the committee regarding issues caused by the rural 
addressing moratorium. Information regarding the rural addressing system was received by the 
committee from Sheriff Johnson and Interim Administrator Fuge.  

Chair Luke called for a recess at 2:47 p.m. Chair Luke called the committee back in session at 2:53 p.m. 

Motion (Route/Jepsen) to approve Resolution No. 76-18 and recommend for passage to the County 
Board.  

Motion (Jepsen/Demulling) to amend Resolution No. 76-18 by striking lines 20 and 21 and lines 32 thru 
34. Chair Luke called for a voice vote on said amendment. Motion to amend Resolution No. 76-18 
striking lines 20 and 21 and lines 32 through 34 carried by unanimous voice vote.  

Motion to approve Resolution No. 76-18: Resolution to Rescind Moratorium on the Administration of 
County Rural Road/Address Numbering System and to Call for the Vote on Proposed Ordinance No. 48-
18: Polk County Uniform Rural Addressing and Road Numbering Ordinance to County Board as amended 
and recommend for passage to the County Board carried by majority voice vote with one opposed.  

Recommendation on Ordinance No. 48-18: Polk County Uniform Rural Addressing and Road Numbering 
Ordinance was discussed.  Motion (Route/Jepsen) to approve Ordinance No. 48-18 and recommend for 
passage to the County Board. Chair Luke called for a voice vote on said motion.  Motion to approve 



3 
 

Ordinance No. 48-18 and recommend for passage to the County Board carried by majority voice vote 
with 2 opposed.  

Revise Committee Workplan 

Add to workplan: Annual Budget Amendments – November meeting 

Monthly department program reviews  

Develop 2019 work plan – December meeting 

Matters for Upcoming Meetings 

Next meeting: November 6, 2018 at County Board Room 

November: Budget Amendment Recommendations, Monthly department program review, Force to 
Force Training Demo 

Chair Luke called for a motion to adjourn.  Motion (Bonneprise/Route) to adjourn.  Motion carried by 
unanimous voice vote.  Chair Luke declared meeting adjourned at 3:56 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 

 

 

 

 











Administrator’s Summary:    Uniform Rural Addressing and Road Numbering Ordinance 
 
Legislative Process: 
 
The County Board has referred the ordinance to the Public Safety and Highway Committee for the 
purpose of developing recommendations for revisions to the language of the ordinance.  
 
In October 2018, the County Board received information concerning the rural grid addressing 
system and inter-relationship with the functions of the Communications Unit of Sheriff’s 
Department to dispatch law enforcement and emergency services to all agencies throughout the 
County.  Additionally, the Board received an opinion from the office of Corporation Counsel 
concerning litigation a similar ordinance in Marathon County on the issue of definition of “rural” as 
used in the ordinance. The litigation has moved to the Wisconsin Supreme Court.  The office of 
Corporation Counsel recommended to the County Board to hold off on enactment of the proposed 
ordinance until the Marathon County case reached a final decision by the Wisconsin Supreme Court.  
The office of Corporation Counsel reasoned that because the proposed Polk County ordinance 
lacked a definition on the same term, “rural”, there would be uncertainly on whether the ordinance, 
if enacted, could be lawfully administered.  
 
The County Board also received information concerning modifications to the ordinance that could 
address the balance of the public need for safety, the control of towns in making address changes, 
and the inconvenience that the ordinance would bring to property owners who had to change 
addresses because adjacent properties were required to change address under the application of 
the ordinance and rural address grid system.  One solution offered to the County Board was to have 
roads named with both current name and road number when a change is needed. Another solution 
offered was to modify the ordinance to allow the road and address changes when requested by the 
town or where a town opts in to the county’s system, much like a town may do when considering a 
zoning ordinance.    
 
The office of Corporation Counsel provided the recommendation that such policy recommendations 
by the committee irrespective of the pending Marathon County case and that the ordinance with all 
language recommendations could then come back to the County Board once the Supreme Court 
issued its decision on the Marathon County case sometime in 2019.   
 
As a related matter, the County Board has determined that the moratorium on the continued 
implementation of the rural addressing system will remain in effect despite the practical difficulty 
the moratorium has on the issuance of zoning permits.   
 
Administrator’s Recommendation:   
 
The Administrator has recommended that the committee consider as a recommendation with 
removal of the exception provision found at Section 7.2.    The Administrator also has 
recommended and has requested the committee develop and make policy recommendations that 
the committee may determine as being in the interest of the County and address the related 
concerns of public safety, the differing position of the towns to either hold off on address changes 
while other towns have requested address changes, and the inconvenience that road and address 
changes bring to property owners.  
 



No fiscal impact note and legal impact note are necessary at this time.  The ordinance remains in 
committee and when the committee refers the ordinance back to the county board a fiscal impact 
note and a legal impact note will be issued.  
  
Action Requested:   
 
The County Board requests the committee work to develop recommendations on language 
modifications to the ordinance and move the ordinance to the County Board at a time consistent with 
recommendations of the office of Corporation Counsel.  
 



























Force to Force Training DEMO
Department Program Review

Department Program Review


	PSH Minutes 11-6-18
	PSH 11-6 meeting
	11-06-18 PSH Agenda Packet.pdf
	PSH Agenda 11-6-18

	11-06-18 PSH Agenda Packet
	PSH Minutes 10-9-18
	Res 86-18 Re-Establish CJCC
	Ord 48-18 PSH Admin Summary for 11-6 mtg
	Ord 48-18 Rural Addressing Ord
	Workplan PSH 2018


